MUR7591R00034

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

BY EMAIL ONLY

March 25, 2022
Dianna Ploss
DBA MA4Trump

Stoughton, MA 02072
MA4T@yahoo.com

RE: MUR 7591R
MA4Trump
Dianna Ploss

Dear Ms. Ploss:

On April 10, 2019, the Federal Election Commission (“Commission’) notified you of a
complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended (the “Act’). A copy of the complaint was forwarded to you at that time. Upon
further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, and information supplied by you, the
Commission, on March 22, 2022, decided to exercise its prosecutorial discretion and voted to
dismiss this matter. The Commission then closed its file in this matter. In addition, a Statement
of Reasons providing a basis for the Commission’s decision will follow.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702
(Aug. 2, 2016). If you have any questions, please contact Don Campbell, the attorney assigned
to this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Lisa J. Stevenson
Acting General Counsel

BY: Mark Shonkwiler
Assistant General Counsel
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	March 27, 2019 
	MUR # ~59/
	Office of General Counsel 
	-
	Federal Election Commission 
	999 E. Street, NW 
	Washington, DC 20463 
	To whom it may concern, 
	I am writing to file an official complaint against Dianna Ploss and "MA4Trump", who claim to be helping a Federal cand idate and are raising money for that purpose . . 
	I am enclosing a copy of an advertisement from the January 2019 edition ofthe Boston Broadside, a monthly newspaper published out of Peabody Massachusetts. The advertisement specifically includes a solicitation of funds, "payable to MA4Trump" which would indicate that they have an account, which according to your web site, is not registered with the FEC. 
	In addition to the prima facia evidence of activity in violation of Federal Election Law, "MA4Trump" is claiming to be a candidate committee, although they have no affiliation with any registered candidate committee or PAC. "MA4Trump" is also using the name of a candidate, Donald J. Trump, in violation of FEC rules. 
	("\ 
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	Furthermore, even if "MA4Trump" was an FEC registered committee, the advertisement lacks 1.h1 
	. ,.. appropriate "paid for" disclaimer as per FEC rules. .,., -r~. -,
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	Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
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	Martin A. Lamb 
	Martin A. Lamb 
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	Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
	Middlesex, ss 
	Middlesex, ss 
	March~:2019 

	On this(/1 day of fVi.. 1.,. rl V\ 1-1_, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Martin A. Lamb, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were Massachusetts Driver's License, to be the person who signed the preceding or attached document in my presence, and who swore or affirmed to me that the contents ofthe document are truthful and accurate to the best ofhis knowledge and belief. 
	20
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	WENDY A. HARRINGTON 


	t::::. Notcry Public 1fiilfcon1mo,,weal1h of Mcuoc:hus.etts ~ My Comminion Expires 
	Moy 3, 2024 
	21Pag e 
	Link
	Link
	Figure

	\ e\\ England Politic<: and Bey ond. WITHO UT THE LIBERAL SPIN 
	18 JAN. 2019 The Boston Broadside BostonBroadside.com 

	-,Its Time to Cebrate the ·· Victories of President Donald J. Trump! 
	Join us for the Massachusetts for Trump's 3rd Annual Christmas Party &Trump 2020 Campaign Kick Off. This event is hosted by MA4Trump & Dianna Ploss, WSMN1590 Radio Personality and a Massachusetts 2016 Trump Campaign Deputy State Director! 
	Dianna played a critical role in 2016. She coordinated and energized hundreds of volunteers across Massachusetts to work for victory in November 2016. To help Donald Trump, Dianna directed the MA4Trump Team that integrated emails, a website, social media posts and pages and field activities in an unprecedented manner. Meet her, along with other influential people in Massachusetts, including 2018 Republican Gubernatorial Candidate, Scott Lively! 
	You will also learn how to get involved in the Massachusetts Campaign to re-elect President Donald J. Trump in a room filled with fellow supporters. 
	Tickets are $35 per person, which include: 
	• Dinner catered by our Trump Friends at: www.sichuangourmethouse.com 
	Figure

	January 27, 2019 
	January 27, 2019 
	• Music by Steve Spinelli: www.facebook.com/djspinelliassoc 

	4pmto7~ 
	4pmto7~ 
	• Surprises! •• cash Bar •• Send check made payable to "MA4Trump" to:

	at the American Legion Post 440 
	at the American Legion Post 440 
	MA4Trump 348 Metropolitan Avenue, Roslindale, MA 02131 295 California Street, Newton, Mass. or, pay by Credit card via EventBrite: www.eventbrite.com/o/dianna-ploss-12022102731 Important Disclosures: 

	www.american1egionpost440.org 
	www.american1egionpost440.org 
	• SECRIT audio recordings of any kind will NOT be tolerated. Violators will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of the law. 
	• Solicitation of event guests is NOT allowed. 
	See you all there! Thank you! Massachusetts 4 Trump (MA4Trump) Team 
	Child protective services (CPS) hann, elderly financiaJ than not, don't even cover up the existing problems a person abuse, guardianships. ()l'Obate coJJJ'l abuse and many other may have, Public schools and CPS often usefuats ofchild dangers to you and society that you often read about in this removal to posh psychiatric labeJs and drugs on children and newspaper nave one key source -PSYCHIATRY and their this is anoth.e.r form ofin:voluntarv'commitm,rnt ..ntfJ.nrrPn. 
	~ 

	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	MA4 Trump APR 1 0 2019 Dianna Ploss, Member 
	Stoughton, MA 02072 
	RE: MUR 7591 
	Dear Ms. Ploss: 
	The Federal Election Commission received a complaint that indicates MA 4 Trump and you may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"). A copy of the complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 7591. Please refer to this number in all future correspondence. 
	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against MA 4 Trump and you in this matter. If you wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission's consideration of this matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge. Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel's Office, must be submitted within 15 days ofreceipt ofth
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public. Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies. 
	1 

	If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission. Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records, and materials relating to the subject matter ofthe complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in thi
	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations oflaw not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one ofthe following (note, ifsubmitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt by 
	email): 
	email): 
	email): 

	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission Office ofComplaints Examination and Legal Administration Attn: Christal Dennis, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Federal Election Commission Office ofComplaints Examination and Legal Administration Attn: Christal Dennis, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	cela@fec.gov 


	If you have any questions, please contact Christal Dennis at (202) 694-1650 or toll free at 1800-424-9530. For your information, we have enclosed a briefdescription ofthe Commission's procedures for handling complaints. 
	-

	Figure
	Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	April 23, 2019 
	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination and Legal Administration 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Attention: Christal Dennis, Paralegal Jeff S. Jordan, Assistant General Counsel 
	RE: MUR 7591 
	RE: MUR 7591 
	Dear Christal and Jeff: 
	Digitally 
	signed by 
	Christal 
	'-<e'~~Dennis Date: 08:45:41 -04'00' 
	2019.04.24 

	In compliance with the FEC letter dated Apr 10, 2019 regarding a complaint subscribed and submitted by Mr. Martin A. Lamb, I, Dianna Ploss, respectfully provide the following reply: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Up to this date, I, Dianna Ploss, and/or the entity doing business as MA4Trump, am not a committee or group of people appointed for a specific function. 

	• 
	• 
	I, Dianna Ploss, and/or the entity doing business as MA4Trump, am the same legal person or entity. See attachment. Thus, it does not fall within the definition of a political committee or organization that must register with the FEC as to be considered a committee, club, association, organization or group of people. 

	• 
	• 
	I, Dianna Ploss, am promoting the right of association with similar sympathizers and supporters of President Donald J Trump. No individual or other person holds any position or decision-making role except for me, Dianna Ploss. 

	• 
	• 
	I, Dianna Ploss, am practicing my right of freedom of speech in supporting President, Donald J Trump. 

	• 
	• 
	The advertisement attached to the complaint letter filed by Mr. Marty Lamb shows an occasion of how the mentioned goals are attained by me, Dianna Ploss. President Trump supporters willingly and enthusiastically gathered atthe event in January 2019. The ticket price helped to cover the expense of food, music, and a safe venue. It was not a fundraiser. No contributions or solicitation for the President to me, Dianna Ploss, or the entity MA4Trump, was done. It was a party where President Trump supporters came


	1 
	together and collectively celebrated the common interest ofsupporting President Donald J Trump. 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	In addition, I, Dianna Ploss respectfully state that in any case, the January 2019 event Is protected by the right offreedom of assembly or association. 

	• 
	• 
	It is my opinion, Dianna Ploss, that Mr. Marty Lamb is acting out of revenge and not in the interest of pursuing compliance with the law.I, Dianna Ploss, have been an outspoken critic of Mr. Marty Lamb, who ls also a Massachusetts Republican State Committee Man. Prior to t he filing of the FEC complaint by him, I publicly questioned Mr. Marty Lamb and the Massachusetts GOP Chair, Jim Lyons, regarding a fake email that was circulated by them. This email was used to garner support of the Jewish Community for 
	1 


	• 
	• 
	Instead of replying to my multiple email requests for clarity around this potentially fraudulent email, both Mr. Marty Lamb and Massachusetts GOP Chair, Jim Lyons, refused to reply. Mr. Marty Lamb even took steps to block me from posting on his Public State Committee Facebook Page. 

	• 
	• 
	Finally, this is not the first time that Massachusetts Republican Party Leaders have retaliated against me for speaking out against some of their actions, and for being the sole Public and Visible supporter of President Donald J Trump in in all of Massachusetts. I have been dragged into court for fake trespassing charges. Charges dismissed; stalked; property damaged; defamed; threatened with death; slapped with 2 frivolous lawsuits. And, I am certain that this FEC complaint will NOT.be the last time that me


	Therefore, It Is respectfully requested that you consider the above-mentioned information and 1 2019. 
	determine the dismissal of the complaint by Mr. Marty Lamb, dated March 27

	Respectfully Submitted, 
	Mr. Marty Lamb holds a position of State Committee man for the Second Middlesex & Norfolk ofthe Massachusetts Republican Party with whom I am not connected because of years of long hostile actions against the President Donald J Trump. 
	1 

	Ms. Dianna Ploss 

	OBA MA4Trump 
	OBA MA4Trump 
	Stoughton MA 02072 
	Email: 
	MA4T@yahoo.com 
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	MA4T@Y AHOO.COM 
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	MA4Trump 

	14 
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	Dianna Ploss 

	15 
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	17 
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	52 U.S.C. § 30101(4), (8) 

	18 
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	52 U.S.C. § 30103(a) 

	19 
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	I. INTRODUCTION 

	28 
	28 


	29 
	29 
	29 
	The Complaint alleges that MA4Trump, which holds itself out as being founded and 

	30 
	30 
	operated by Boston area radio host Dianna Ploss, failed to register and report as a political 

	31 
	31 
	committee after raising and spending money for events supporting President Donald J. Trump’s 

	32 
	32 
	2020 re-election.  The Complaint also alleges that MA4Trump’s use of the name “Trump” in its 

	33 
	33 
	name violates the law by improperly holding itself out as an authorized candidate committee and 

	34 
	34 
	that it failed to use the required disclaimer in a newspaper advertisement.  

	35 
	35 
	The Response asserts that MA4Trump is a trade name under which Ploss, an individual, 

	36 
	36 
	conducts her political activities, and that there is no legal entity separate from Ploss.  The 


	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) 
	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) 
	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) 

	First General Counsel’s Report 
	First General Counsel’s Report 

	Page 2 of 20 
	Page 2 of 20 

	1 
	1 
	Response argues that because MA4Trump is not a separate legal entity, there is no committee, 

	2 
	2 
	club, association, or group of persons required to register and report as a political committee.  

	3 
	3 
	The Response does not address the allegations regarding the use of “Trump” in the group’s name 

	4 
	4 
	or the lack of a disclaimer.    

	5 
	5 
	Because the available record supports the inference that MA4Trump, which repeatedly 

	6 
	6 
	advertised itself as a “team,” raised and spent in excess of $1,000 in 2019 and devoted itself 

	7 
	7 
	almost completely to supporting Trump’s re-election, we recommend that the Commission find 

	8 
	8 
	reason to believe that MA4 Trump and Dianna Ploss d/b/a MA4Trump violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 

	9 
	9 
	30103(a) & 30104(a)(1) by failing to register and file reports as a political committee, and 52 

	10 
	10 
	U.S.C. § 30120(a) by failing to include the required disclaimer in a newspaper advertisement.  

	11 
	11 
	We further recommend that the Commission authorize compulsory process to determine the 

	12 
	12 
	scope of MA4Trump’s activities.  Finally, we recommend that the Commission take no action as 

	13 
	13 
	to the allegation that MA4Trump improperly used Trump’s name. 

	14 
	14 
	II. 
	FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

	15 
	15 
	Dianna Ploss is a radio host in Boston, Massachusetts.1 Ploss has identified herself as a 

	16 
	16 
	Massachusetts 2016 Trump Campaign Deputy State Director.2 
	Her personal website describes 

	17 
	17 
	her as being “dedicated to helping Americans understand the issues we face today, using her 


	1 
	See DIANNA PLOSS WEBSITEthat the Dianna Ploss show is on WSMN1590). 
	, available at https://diannaploss.com/ (last accessed February 6, 2020) (stating 

	2 
	MUR 7591, Compl., Ex. A. (Apr. 02, 2019). 
	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 3 of 20 
	1 multiple media platforms to spread the message.”Her website’s homepage features several 2 images of Donald Trump.3 Ploss’s homepage states that she founded MA4Trump in February 2016, and that since 4 the group’s inception, she has “rallied President Trump supporters across Massachusetts and 5 beyond.”  The homepage says that “[t]he MA4Trump Team is dedicated to helping President 6 Trump win his 2020 re-election!”  MA4Trump is discussed repeatedly throughout Ploss’s 7 website, and has its own subpage on he
	3 
	4 
	5
	6
	7
	8 

	10 of political memes, videos, and news articles.  Many of the posts mention Donald Trump, 
	9

	11 
	candidates for the Democratic Presidential nomination in 2020, and Hillary Clinton.
	10 

	Id. 
	3 

	See id. 
	4 

	Id. 
	5 

	Id. 
	6 

	See DIANNA PLOSS WEBSITE, MA4TRUMP TEAMSaccessed Feb. 6, 2020). 
	7 
	, available at https://diannaploss.com/ma4trump (last 

	See id.; MA4TRUMP TWITTER PAGE 6, 2020); MA4TRUMP FACEBOOK GROUP(last accessed Feb. 6, 2020); MA4TRUMP FACEBOOK PAGEaccessed Dec. 17, 2019) (at the time of this writing, MA4Trump’s Facebook page has been deactivated.  The Office of General Counsel was able to ascertain some information from that site before it was deactivated). 
	8 
	, available at https://twitter.com/MA4_Trump (last accessed Feb.
	, available at https://www.facebook.com/groups/1645790582350852/ Trump 
	, available at https://www.facebook.com/MA4Trump (last 

	See, e.g.Dec. 17, 2019). There is also a Facebook page dedicated to “Trump-Pets 2020” that appears to be associated with MA4Trump. See TRUMP-PETS 2020 FACEBOOK PAGEaccessed Feb. 6, 2020). 
	9 
	, MA4Trump Facebook page, available at https://www.facebook.com/MA4Trump/ (last accessed 
	, available at https://www facebook.com/TrumpPets/ (last 

	Id. 
	10 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 4 of 20 
	1 The Complaint includes an advertisement for an event the Respondents hosted on January 2 27, 2019, that was billed as “Massachusetts for Trump’s 3 Annual Christmas Party and Trump 3 2020 Campaign Kick Off.”The advertisement says that tickets for the event were $35 per 4 The advertisement states that participants will 5 “learn how to get involved in the Massachusetts Campaign to re-elect President Donald J. Trump 6 in a room filled with fellow supporters.”  The advertisement further states that 7 Dianna pl
	rd
	11 
	person, with checks payable to MA4Trump.
	12 
	13

	8 volunteers across Massachusetts to work for victory in November 2016.  To help 
	9 Donald Trump, Dianna directed the MA4Trump Team that integrated emails, a 10 website, social media posts and pages and field activities in an unprecedented 11 12 13 The Complaint alleges that this information establishes that MA4Trump is a political 
	manner.
	14 

	14 committee, which is either affiliated with Donald Trump, or in the alternative, is an unaffiliated 15 committee that is using Donald Trump’s name, in violation of the Act.Finally, the Complaint 16 17 The Response states MA4Trump is not a committee or group of people appointed for a 18 The Response therefore asserts that MA4Trump 
	15 
	alleges that the attached advertisement fails to include the required disclaimers.
	16 
	specific function, but consists solely of Ploss.
	17 

	MUR 7591, Compl., Ex. A. (Apr. 02, 2019). 
	11 

	Id. 
	12 

	Id. 
	13 

	Id. 
	14 

	Id. at 1.  
	15 

	Id. 
	16 

	MUR 7591, Resp. at 1 (Apr. 24, 2019). 
	17 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 5 of 20 
	1 is not a political committee under the Act.The Response states the January 27 event was not a 2   The Response asserts 3 that the event “was a party where President Trump supporters came together and collectively 4 celebrated the common interest of supporting President Donald J. Trump.”5 MA4Trump’s Facebook page contained an “Events” page, which showed dozens of past 6 events.  Ploss was identified as the host for some of those events; MA4Trump was identified as 7   For example, MA4Trump was identified as
	18 
	fundraiser, and that the ticket price went to cover expenses for the event.
	19
	20 
	the host for others.
	21

	10 • President Trump Rally in Dallas, Texas (October 17, 2019);11 • President Trump Rally in Minneapolis, Minnesota (October 10, 2019);12 • President Trump Rally in Fayetteville, North Carolina (September 9, 2019);13 • Celebrate July 4 with President Trump in DC (July 4, 2019);14 • Celebrate President Trump’s Birthday with MA4Trump (June 14, 2019);
	22 
	23 
	24 
	th
	25 
	26 

	Id. 
	18 

	Id. 
	19 

	Id. at 1-2.  
	20 

	MA4TRUMP FACEBOOK PAGE2019). This event appears to have been hosted by Donald Trump’s 2020 reelection campaign; it does not appear 
	21 
	, available at https://www facebook.com/MA4Trump/ (last accessed Dec. 17, 
	22 

	that MA4Trump played any role in the event other than creating a Facebook event for it. Id. 
	23 

	Id. 
	24 

	Id. 
	25 

	Attendees purchased their own food and drink. According to the event page, 21 people attended and 128 were interested. 
	26 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 6 of 20 
	1 • Massachusetts 4 Trump 2020 Movement Makes Stop in Bourne (Apr. 27, 
	2 2019);3 • Massachusetts 4 Trump 2020 Movement Makes Stop in Fitchburg (Apr. 26, 4 2019);
	27 
	28 

	5 • Massachusetts Trump 2020 Movement Makes Stop in Winthrop (Mar. 7, 2019);6 • Massachusetts 4 Trump Christmas Party and Trump 2020 Kick-Off (Jan. 27, 7 8 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 9 A. There is Reason to Believe That MA4 Trump is a Political Committee. 10 The Act and Commission regulations define a “political committee” as “any committee, 11 club, association or other group of persons which receives contributions aggregating in excess of 12 $1,000 during a calendar year or which makes expenditures aggregating i
	29 
	2019).
	30 
	31
	influencing any election for Federal office.
	32
	federal candidate to be a contribution.
	33

	Donations of an unspecified amount were accepted at the door to cover the cost of light refreshments. 
	27 

	According to the event page, 13 people attended and 52 were interested. Tickets were $30 per person, and space was limited to 90 people.  According to the event page, 13 people attended and 145 were interested. 
	28 

	The page says that MA4Trump does not take donations. According to the event page, 32 people attended and 291 were interested. According to the event page, tickets were $35 per person.  78 people attended and 400 were interested. 52 U.S.C. § 30101(4)(A); 11 C.F.R. § 100.5. 52 U.S.C. § 30101(8)(A)(i). 11 C.F.R.§ 100.53. (Entire amount paid to attend political event is a contribution). 
	29 
	30 
	31 
	32 
	33 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 7 of 20 
	1 registration within 10 days of becoming a political committee and must file periodic reports with 2 3 In Buckley v. Valeo,the Supreme Court held that defining political committee status 4 “only in terms of the annual amount of ‘contributions’ and ‘expenditures’” might be overbroad, 5 reaching “groups engaged purely in issue discussion.”  To cure that infirmity, the Court 6 concluded that the term “political committee” “need only encompass organizations that are under 7 the control of a candidate or the ma
	the Commission.
	34 
	35 
	36
	37

	10 threshold and (2) it has as its “major purpose” the nomination or election of federal candidates. 11 The Commission generally considers on a case-by-case basis whether a group’s major purpose is 12 the nomination or election of a federal 
	candidate.
	38 

	13 1. MA4Trump Raised and Spent More Than $1,000 in 2019 to Influence the 2020 14 Presidential Election.  15 16 The available information supports a reasonable inference that MA4Trump both raised 
	17 and spent more than $1,000 in 2019 to influence the 2020 Presidential election.  The information 
	52 U.S.C. § 30103(a); 30104(a)(1). 424 U.S. 1 (1976). Id. at 79. 
	34 
	35 
	36 

	Id. (emphasis added). 
	37 

	See Political Committee Status, 72 Fed. Reg. 5,596 (Feb. 7, 2007) (Supplemental Explanation and Justification) (“Supplemental E&J”). 
	38 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 8 of 20 
	1 shows that MA4Trump sponsored numerous events for the express purpose of supporting 2 Trump’s re-election, and that funds were raised for and spent on those events. 3 A review of MA4Trump’s Facebook events in 2019 shows at least three events where 4 donations were accepted: 5 • Massachusetts 4 Trump 2020 Movement Makes Stop in Bourne, held on April 27, 2019.  
	6 Donations of an unspecified amount were accepted at the door to cover the cost of light 7 refreshments.  According to the event page, 13 people attended and 52 were interested in 8 the 9 • Massachusetts 4 Trump 2020 Movement Makes Stop in Fitchburg, held on April 26, 
	event.
	39 

	10 2019. Tickets were $30 per person, and space was limited to 90 people.  According to 11 12 • Massachusetts 4 Trump Christmas Party and Trump 2020 Kick-Off, held on January 27, 13 2019. According to the event page, tickets were $35 per person, 78 people attended and 14 
	the event page, 13 people attended and 145 were interested in the event.
	40 
	400 were interested.
	41 

	15 The number of people attending each of these events, as shown on the Facebook pages, 16 multiplied by the advertised ticket prices, supports a reasonable inference that MA4Trump raised 17 more than $1,000 in contributions in 2019.  For example, if all 78 people who indicated they 18 attended the January 27, 2019, “Christmas Party and 2020 Kick-Off” actually attended that 19 event, MA4Trump would have raised $2,730 in contributions on that night alone.  Of course, that 20 figure would be higher if people 
	MA4TRUMP FACEBOOK PAGE2019). 
	39 
	, available at https://www facebook.com/MA4Trump/ (last accessed Dec. 17, 

	Id. 
	40 

	Id.  OGC’s review of MA4Trump’s Facebook page showed that MA4Trump hosted similar events, where funds were raised, in 2016, 2017, and 2018. However, that Facebook page was deactivated before the information regarding those events was recorded. 
	41 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 9 of 20 
	1   As shown in the Complaint’s exhibit, 2 3 Respondents assert that the ticket price for the January 27 event “helped to cover the 4 expense of food, music, and a safe venue,” but this argument does not change the conclusion that 5 The Commission has consistently advised that 6 if a political committee includes the cost of food or beverages in the charge that donors must pay 7 to attend an event, an attendee’s payment of that charge constitutes a payment to attend a 8 9 There is also information that MA4Tr
	the Facebook event at all, attended and contributed.
	42
	MA4Trump had a bank account that accepted checks made payable to MA4Trump.
	43 
	the amounts attendees paid were contributions.
	44 
	fundraiser under 11 C.F.R. § 100.53, and is thus a contribution.
	45 

	10 Response is silent as to the specific amount of expenditures made by MA4Trump.  However, the 11 Response’s assertion that the ticket price for the January 27 event helped to cover the expense of 12 food, music, and a safe venue supports an inference that most, if not all, of the funds raised for 13 all of MA4Trump’s events were spent to cover the costs of those explicitly pro-Trump events, 14 indicating that MA4Trump made expenditures exceeding $1,000 in that year.
	46 

	We recognize that the total amount raised at this event would be lower if not as many people actually attended as shown on the Facebook page, but even if the actual amount raised was 50% lower than indicated by the page, the total still would exceed $1,000. 
	42 

	See Compl., Ex. A. See Resp. at 1. Advisory Op. 2015-07 (Hillary for America). 
	43 
	44 
	45 

	See generally, Advisory Op. 2015-07 (concluding that meals are a thing of value at a fundraiser event); Advisory Op. 1982-50 (Florida Breakfast and Lunch Bunch) (concluding that amounts paid by individuals for a meal at an event held by a political committee would be a contribution to that committee); Advisory Op. 1988-22 (San Joaquin Valley Republican Associates) (concluding that if a luncheon involves the express advocacy, then the luncheon is a campaign event, and payment for luncheon expenses would be a
	46 

	The activities that MA4Trump engaged in to campaign for Trump in 2016, as shown in the advertisement attached to the Complaint, also suggest spending by MA4Trump.  While the information does not show exactly what MA4Trump did to support Trump during 2016, the apparent integration of emails, a website, social media 
	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 10 of 20 
	1 2. MA4Trump’s Major Purpose Is Supporting the Election of Donald Trump.  2 MA4Trump’s name and online communications unequivocally state that MA4Trump’s 3 major purpose is to support Donald Trump.  Ploss’s homepage states that she founded 4 MA4Trump in February 2016; that section of the homepage immediately follows with “[s]ince 5 its inception, Dianna has rallied President Trump supporters across Massachusetts and 6 beyond.”The homepage states that MA4Trump’s Facebook Group “connects President Trump 7 Su
	47 
	48 

	10 those webpages contain numerous messages and pictures expressing support for Trump.  11 MA4Trump’s name further suggests that the group’s primary purpose is supporting Trump.  The 12 advertisement attached to the Complaint, ostensibly written by Ploss, states that during the 2016 13 election, MA4Trump “integrated emails, a website, social media posts and pages and field 14 activities in an unprecedented manner.”These activities were done “[t]o help Donald Trump. . 
	49 

	15 . .”  The advertisement goes on to state that attendees will “learn how to get involved in the 16 Massachusetts Campaign to re-elect President Donald J. Trump in a room filled with fellow 17 supporters.”  Although the materials make brief references to other candidates, such as 
	50
	51

	posts/pages, and field activities, done in an “unprecedented manner” as claimed in the advertisement, could have required the expenditure of more than $1,000 for the purpose of influencing the 2016 election. 
	DIANNA PLOSS WEBSITE
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	, available at https://diannaploss.com/ (last accessed February 6, 2020). 
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	Compl. Ex. A.  
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	Id. 
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	Id. 
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	1 Massachusetts Republican Gubernatorial candidate Scott Lively, the clear focus of the 
	2 organization is to support Donald Trump.  
	3 3. MA4Trump is a Group of Persons.   4 The Response’s primary argument is that MA4Trump is not a legal entity separate from 5 Ploss, it cannot be considered a committee or group of people, and it thus falls outside the 6   The record, however, does not support this assertion.   7 First, MA4Trump repeatedly refers to itself as being a “team,” and an ordinary definition 8 of “team” is “two or more people working together.”The advertisement attached to the 9 Complaint says that Ploss “directed the MA4Trump T
	definition of a political committee.
	52
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	10 describing MA4Trump on Ploss’s website when it says “[m]embers of the MA4Trump Team 11 were in Nashua New Hampshire,” “[t]he MA4Trump Page is managed by the MA4Trump 12 Team,” and “[t]he MA4Trump Team is dedicated to helping President Trump win his 2020 re13 election!”MA4Trump’s name itself is inconsistent with Respondents’ assertion that it consists 14 of only Ploss.  The name suggests that the organization includes numerous Massachusetts 
	-
	55 

	See Resp. at 1; see generally 52 U.S.C. § 30101(4)(A); 11 C.F.R. § 100.5. 
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	Team, NEW OXFORD AMERICAN DICTIONARY, (3ed. 2010). 
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	Compl., Ex. A.  
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	See DIANNA PLOSS WEBSITE(emphasis added). 
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	, available at https://diannaploss.com/ (last accessed February 6, 2020) 
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	1 citizens, not a single person.  Thus, MA4Trump’s own communications and name contradict its 2 3 Second, rather than using only Dianna Ploss’s personal funds, MA4Trump solicited and 4 raised funds from donors who paid money to sponsor various events supporting Trump’s 5 election.  Thus, the individuals who attended the events and otherwise participated in 6 MA4Trump election-related activities acted as part of a group.  In Advisory Opinion 1980-126 7 (Independent Voters for a Republican Victory) the Commis
	claim that it consists of just Ploss.
	56 
	57 

	10 The solicited individuals were encouraged to send checks 11 made out to IVRV, to be deposited in a bank account that the group’s founder, Warren Lewis, 12 had established in the group’s name.  Although Lewis purported to have maintained control 13 over IVRV’s organizational decision-making, the Commission concluded that Lewis had reached 14 beyond his personal funds and resources to involve numerous contributors in group, and that 15 such contributors therefore participated in the activities of IVRV, cau
	candidates in the 1980 election.
	58 
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	We recognize that some of the statements about the “MA4Trump Team” might include puffery, but such a conclusion would be speculative. Advisory Op. 1980-126 (Independent Voters for a Republican Victory) at 1-2.  Id. at 2.  
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	Id. 
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	1 election related activity without incorporating as a separate legal entity could trigger political 2 Thus, Commission precedent supports the conclusion that while Ploss 3 directed MA4Trump’s activities, those activities also involved a larger group of people who 4 5 Accordingly, we recommend that the Commission find reason to believe that MA4Trump 6 and Dianna Ploss d/b/a MA4Trump violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30103(a) & 30104(a)(1) by failing to 7 register and report as a political committee.  As explained below
	committee status.
	61 
	contributed to MA4Trump, and were therefore a part of that group.
	62 
	disbursements it made to support Trump’s election and re-election.
	63 

	10 B. There is Reason to Believe that MA4Trump Failed to Use the Necessary 11 Disclaimer in its Advertisement. 12 13 The Complaint alleges that its attached advertisement failed to include the necessary 
	14 disclaimer, in violation the Act.Political committees must include a disclaimer on all public 15 communications, bulk electronic mail, and websites available to the general public, regardless of 16 whether the communication contains express advocacy or solicits funds in connection with a 17 When a communication is paid for by a political committee that is not 18 authorized by a candidate, an authorized political committee of a candidate, or its agents, the 19 disclaimer must clearly state the name, perma
	64 
	federal election.
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	Fed. Election Comm'n v. Malenick, 310 F. Supp. 2d 230, 234 (D.D.C. 2004), rev'd in part on reconsideration, No. CIV.A. 02-1237 (JR), 2005 WL 588222 (D.D.C. Mar. 7, 2005).  
	61 

	See supra, p. 8-9.  The Response suggests that the group plans to continue raising and spending funds in support of Trump’s 2020 re-election campaign. Resp. at 1-2. 
	62 
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	Compl. at 1. 52 U.S.C. § 30120; 1l.C.F.R. § 110.11(a)(1). 
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	1 Wide Web address of the person who paid for the communication, and state that the 2   Public 3 communications include a newspaper advertisement.  In printed communications, the disclaimer 4 5 For the reasons stated above, MA4Trump is a political committee, and all of its public 6   Even 7 if it were not a political committee, its public communications containing express advocacy or 8 9 The advertisement attached to the Complaint includes no disclaimer at all, and because 
	communication is not authorized by any candidate or candidate’s committee.
	66
	must be contained within a printed box set apart from the contents of the communications.
	67 
	communications, as defined in 11 C.F.R. §100.26, were required to include a disclaimer.
	68
	solicitations were required to include a disclaimer.
	69 

	10 The ad 11   Thus, regardless of 12 whether the group was a political committee, a disclaimer was required because the 13 advertisement solicited contributions.  As a result, we recommend that the Commission find 
	MA4Trump is a political committee, the lack of a disclaimer on the ad is a violation.
	70 
	also publicizes an event for which the group sold tickets to raise funds.
	71

	52 U.S.C. § 30120(a). Because we have no information suggesting that any of MA4Trump’s online communications were paid communications, we make no recommendations at this time as to whether those online communications should have had disclaimers. 
	66 

	Id. § 110.11(c)(2)(ii). 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a)(1).  Id. § 110.11(a)(2)-(3). Compl. Ex. A.  
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	71 

	MURs 7591 (MA4Trump) First General Counsel’s Report Page 15 of 20 
	1 reason to believe that MA4Trump and Dianna Ploss d/b/a MA4Trump violated 52 U.S.C. § 
	2 30120(a). 
	3 C. The Commission Should Take No Action at This Time as to Whether 4 MA4Trump Violated the Act by Fraudulently Misrepresenting Itself or by 5 Using a Candidate’s Name.  6 7 The Act provides that no person shall fraudulently misrepresent the person as speaking, 
	8 writing, or otherwise acting for, or on behalf of, any candidate or agent thereof for the purpose of 
	9 Although the Act requires that the violator have the 
	soliciting contributions or donations.
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	10 intent to deceive, it does not require proof of the common law fraud elements of justifiable 
	11 Absent an express misrepresentation, a representation is considered 
	reliance and damages.
	73 

	12 fraudulent “if it was reasonably calculated to deceive persons of ordinary prudence and 
	13 comprehension.”
	74 

	14 To determine whether a person has engaged in fraudulent misrepresentation, the 
	15 Commission has previously considered such factors as: (1) whether the respondent political 
	52 U.S.C. § 30124(b)(1); see also 11 C.F.R. § 110.16(b)(1). 
	72 

	See FEC v. Novacek, 739 F. Supp. 2d 957, 961 (N.D. Tex. 2010) (finding that defendants knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S.C. § 441h(b) (now 52 U.S.C. § 30124(b))); Disclaimers, Fraudulent Solicitation, Civil Penalties, and Personal Use of Campaign Funds, 67 Fed. Reg. 76,962, 76,969 (Dec. 13, 2002) (“Explanation and Justification”) (citing Neder v. United States, 527 U.S. 1, 24-25 (1999)) (distinguishing fraud in federal campaign finance abuses from common law tort action on the basis of Congress intendi
	73 

	Novacek, 739 F. Supp. 2d at 961; see also United States v. Thomas, 377 F.3d 232, 242 (2d Cir. 2004) (citing, inter alia, Silverman v. United States, 213 F.2d 405 (5th Cir. 1954) (holding that, if the mails are used in a scheme devised with the intent to defraud, the fact that there is no misrepresentation of a single existing fact makes no difference in the fraudulent nature of the scheme); F&LA at 9, MUR 5951 (Californians for Change f/k/a Californians for Obama). 
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	1 committee was registered and reporting to the Commission, if required;(2) the presence of 
	75 

	2 adequate disclaimers;(3) inclusion of statements implying that the respondents acted with the 
	76 

	3 authority of the represented candidate;(4) inclusion of statements implying that contributions 
	77 

	4 to the respondent would go directly to the represented candidate;(5) mimicry of the 
	78 

	5 candidate’s website or use of the candidate’s official logo;(6) whether any individuals were 
	79
	80 

	6 actually misled by the website; (7) and whether the respondent used a misleading name.
	81 
	82 

	F&LA at 10, MUR 6633 (Republican Majority Campaign) (“[w]eighing against a finding of reason to believe that the Respondent violated [52 U.S.C. § 30124(b)] is the fact that [the Respondent] is registered with the Commission and complies with its reporting requirements”); see also First Gen. Counsel’s Report at 12, MUR 5472 (Republican Victory 2004 Committee) (“failure to file reports with the Commission indicating on what, if anything, money raised has been spent may be probative of the Committee’s intent t
	75 

	F&LA at 10, MUR 6641 (CAPE PAC) ([t]he Commission has previously held that the presence of an adequate disclaimer identifying the person or entity that paid for and authorized a communication can defeat an inference that a respondent maintained the requisite intent to deceive for purposes of a section [30124] violation.”). 
	76 

	Gen. Counsel’s Brief at 14–16, MUR 5951 (Californians for Change) (recommending probable cause to believe Californians for Obama violated [section 30124] by, inter alia, approving a telemarketing solicitation script that stated “We are Senator Obama’s California organization to help put the face-of-change in the White House” and where an officer went by the title “State Chairman,” thereby giving “the impression that the organization was the official representative of the national Obama campaign in the State
	77 
	 Counsel’s Report at 3, MURs 5443, 5495, 5505 (johnfkerry-2004.com) (recommending 

	Compare, e.g., Gen. Counsel’s Brief at 8, MUR 5472 (recommending probable cause in part on the basis of the statement “Contributions or gifts to the Republican Party are not deductible as charitable contributions”) (emphasis in original) with F&LA at 10, MUR 6641 (finding no reason to believe statements such as “Help CAPE PAC re-elect Allen West to Congress” led to fraudulent misrepresentation). 
	78 

	First Gen.to believe respondents violated the Act by copying several pages from the candidate’s legitimate website). 
	79 
	 Counsel’s Report at 3, MURs 5443, 5495, 5505 (johnfkerry-2004.com) (recommending reason 

	F&LA, MUR 6531 (Obama-Biden 2012) (finding reason to believe a respondent violated the Act in part by placing the Obama for America logo on its website and merchandise). 
	80 

	Gen. Counsel’s Brief at 14–16, MUR 5951 (Californians for Change) (recommending probable cause to believe Californians for Obama violated [section 30124] by, in part on the basis that multiple members of the public were in fact misled and contributed money to the respondents under the belief it would be contributed to then-Senator Barack Obama). 
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	Id. 
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	1 Here, there are some factors that suggest MA4Trump might have violated the prohibition 2 on fraudulent misrepresentation.  The group’s name could have misled supporters into thinking 3 the group was affiliated with the Trump campaign.  And, as discussed above, the group failed to 4 register, despite being required to under the Act, and it failed to include any disclaimer in the 5 There is, however, no information to 6 suggest that any of the other criteria for fraudulent misrepresentation are present, nor
	advertisement that was attached to the Complaint.
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	10 and a safe venue is plausible, and we have no information to the contrary.  The available 11 information suggests that the group was not raising funds to enrich itself, but to cover the costs 12 for each individual event. 13 On balance, we recommend that the Commission take no action at this time regarding 14 fraudulent misrepresentation.  If information regarding this potential violation becomes available 15 during the course of the proposed investigation, we will make the appropriate recommendations.  
	name of each unauthorized committee shall not include the name of any candidate.
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	Compl. Ex. A.  52 U.S.C. § 30102(e)(4); 11 C.F.R. § 102.14(a). 
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	1 communications, including a special project name or other designation.”  An unauthorized 2 committee may only include the name of a candidate in the title of a special project name or 3 other communication if the title clearly and unambiguously shows opposition to the named 4   This restriction applies to the use of a candidate’s first name “where the first name 5 clearly conveys the identity of the candidate.”6 On March 21, 2019, the U. S. District Court for the District of Columbia declared 7 11 C.F.R. 
	85
	candidate.
	86
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	88 
	this time that MA4Trump violated 11 C.F.R. 102.14(a).
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	10 IV. PROPOSED INVESTIGATION 
	11 It is unclear how much MA4Trump received and disbursed, how much cash it currently 
	12 has on hand, and what activities the group has taken to support Trump.  We intend to determine 
	13 the amounts raised and spent by MA4Trump, how many donors it has, and whether it has spent 
	14 funds on any federal political activity other than the events described above to support Trump.  
	Id. 
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	11 C.F.R. § 102.14(b)(3). 
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	Advisory Op. 1995-09 at 5–6 (NewtWatch PAC) (finding that the title “NewtWatch” obviously referred to then Speaker of the House Newt Gingrich); see Advisory Op. 2015-04 at 3 (Collective Actions PAC); F&LA, MUR 6775 (Ready for Hillary PAC, et al.); cf. Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1, 43 n.51 (1976) (interpreting the term “clearly identified” to include a candidate’s name, nickname, initials, photograph, or other unambiguous reference as part of a communication). 
	87 

	Pursuing Am.'s Greatness v. Fed. Election Comm'n, 363 F. Supp. 3d 94, 105 (D.D.C. 2019).  
	88 

	Because any litigation of this matter would take place in Massachusetts, the Commission could engage in intercirucit nonacquiescence. See United States v. Mendoza, 464, U.S. 154 (1984) (holding that an adverse ruling against the federal government in one circuit does not prevent the government from litigating the same issue before another circuit court). We nonetheless recommend that the Commission take no action as to the alleged misuse of Trump’s name by MA4Trump, in light of the ruling in Pursuing Americ
	89 

	C.F.R. § 102.14(a), and there were insufficient votes to appeal that decision. 
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	1 We also plan to seek information about any other MA4Trump events and activities during its 
	2 existence. Although we plan to use informal investigative methods, we recommend that the 
	3 Commission authorize the use of compulsory process, in the event the parties do not cooperate 
	4 with the investigation. 
	5 V. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	6 
	6 
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	1. Find reason to believe that MA4Trump and Dianna Ploss d/b/a MA4Trump violated 7 52 U.S.C. §§ 30103(a) & 30104(a)(1); 

	8 
	8 
	2. Find reason to believe that MA4Trump and Dianna Ploss d/b/a MA4Trump violated 9 52 U.S.C. § 30120(a); 

	10 
	10 
	3. Authorize compulsory process; 

	11 
	11 
	4. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis; 

	12 
	12 
	5. Take no action at this time that MA4Trump violated 52 U.S.C. § 30124(b) & 11 13 C.F.R. 102.14(a); and 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
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	Figure
	Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel 
	Charles Kitcher Acting Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Christopher L. Edwards Attorney 
	_____________________ __________________________________ Stephen Gura Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement _________________________ Mark Shonkwiler Assistant General Counsel _________________________ 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of MA4Trump; Dianna Ploss 
	In the Matter of MA4Trump; Dianna Ploss 
	In the Matter of MA4Trump; Dianna Ploss 
	) ) MUR 7591 ) 

	TR
	CERTIFICATION 


	I, Laura E. Sinram, Acting Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election Commission, having reviewed the audio recording of the executive session of the Federal Election Commission for October 13 and 14, 2021, do hereby certify that on October 13, 2021, the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 to: 
	Send the matter to the Alternative Dispute Resolution Office. Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, Trainor, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision. Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Laura e

	Laura e 
	Laura e 
	Sinram Date:  21:33:25
	2021.10.15


	Sinram 
	Sinram 
	-04'00'
	October 15, 2021 Date 
	Laura E. Sinram Acting Secretary and Clerk of the Commission 
	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	MEMORANDUM 
	MEMORANDUM 

	TO: Roy Luckett, Acting Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	FROM: Krista J. Roche Director, ADR Office 
	Joshua A. Rebollozo ADR Specialist, ADR Office 
	CC: Patricia C. Orrock Chief Compliance Officer 
	SUBJECT: Transfer Memo ADR 1051 (MUR 7591) – MA4Trump; Dianna Ploss 
	DATE: January 6, 2022 
	On October 13, 2021, the Commission voted to transfer MUR 7591 to the Alternative Dispute Resolution Office (ADRO), and the ADRO designated the matter ADR 1051. On November 3, 2021, the ADRO notified MA4Trump and Dianna Ploss (Respondents) of Diana Ploss in documents submitted to the Commission. After receiving no response, on November 30, 2021, the ADRO once again notified Respondents of the matter via email and concurrently sent notification via UPS. On December 1, 2021, notification was delivered to Resp
	the matter via email using the email address MA4T@yahoo.com which was provided by 

	ADRO records will now reflect ADR 1051 (MUR 7591) as closed. 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) ) MUR 7591R MA4Trump; Dianna Ploss ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive session on March 22, 2022, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 7591R: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Dismiss the allegations pursuant to Heckler v. Chaney. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Close the file. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Send the appropriate letters. Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, Trainor, Walther, and Weintraub voted 


	affirmatively for the decision. Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Vicktoria J Allen
	Figure

	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Date:  15:55:13 -04'00'
	2022.03.24

	March 24, 2022 Date 
	Vicktoria J. Allen Acting Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	Vicktoria J. Allen Acting Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 

	Figure
	Martin Lamb Holliston, MA 01746 
	VIA ELECTRONIC AND CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
	VIA ELECTRONIC AND CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

	March 25, 2022 
	martin.lamb@comcast.net 
	martin.lamb@comcast.net 


	RE: MUR 7591R 
	Dear Mr. Lamb: 
	On March 22, 2022, the Federal Election Commission reviewed the allegations in your complaint received April 3, 2019. On the basis of the information provided in your complaint, and information provided by Dianna Ploss and MA4Trump, the Commission decided to exercise its prosecutorial discretion to dismiss the allegations as to Dianna Ploss and MA4Trump.  Accordingly, on March 22, 2022, the Commission closed the file in this matter. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016), effective September 1, 2016. A Statement of Reasons further explaining the Commission’s decision will follow. 
	The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this action. See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(8). 
	Sincerely, 
	Lisa J. Stevenson 
	Acting General Counsel BY: Mark Shonkwiler 
	Assistant General Counsel 
	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 
	BY EMAIL ONLY Dianna Ploss 
	BY EMAIL ONLY Dianna Ploss 
	BY EMAIL ONLY Dianna Ploss 
	March 25, 2022  

	Stoughton, MA 02072 MA4T@yahoo.com 
	Stoughton, MA 02072 MA4T@yahoo.com 
	RE: 
	MUR 7591R MA4Trump Dianna Ploss 

	Dear Ms. Ploss: 
	Dear Ms. Ploss: 


	On April 10, 2019, the Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) notified you of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act’).  A copy of the complaint was forwarded to you at that time.  Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, and information supplied by you, the Commission, on March 22, 2022, decided to exercise its prosecutorial discretion and voted to dismiss this matter.  The Commission then closed i
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.   See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016).  If you have any questions, please contact Don Campbell, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, 
	Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel 
	DBA MA4Trump 
	Figure
	BY: Mark Shonkwiler Assistant General Counsel 






